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Town/City: Sturbridge

Place: (neighborhood or village): Fiskdale

Address: 8 Bates Hill
Historic Name: Simeon A. and Mary Drake House
Uses: Present. single-family residence
Original: single-family residence
Date of Construction: 1836
Source: Registry of Deeds
Style/Form: Federal
Architect/Builder: unknown

Exterior Material:
Foundation: stone

Wall/Trim: brick/wood shingle/masonry

Roof: asphalt

Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:
none

Major Alterations (with dates):
Garage & enclosed vestibule added, 1980s; portico rebuilt
unknown date; facade window enclosed unknown date.

Condition: good
Moved: no yes[] Date:
Acreage: .45 acres

Setting: Set facing south on a hillside that slopes down to
the south. It is buffered from the roadside by rows of
shrubbery.
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ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION:

Describe architectural features. Evaluate the characteristics of this building in terms of other buildings within the community.

The Simeon and Mary Drake House is an excellent example of a Federal style building and is one of the only examples of this
style in Sturbridge built in masonry. The brick house is two-and-a-half stories under a side gable roof with two interior chimneys.
The two chimneys were part of a plan that was initiated during the Federal period in order to have a center hallway. There is an
added ventilator on the roof ridge between the two chimneys. The house is five bays wide and two bays deep. South-facing it
has a center entry beneath an added wood portico on braces. The entry is narrow in Federal style and has a transom light
above it. The section of the portico above the braces appears to have been more recently re-built in plywood. Windows in the
house have granite sills and granite lintels and sash for the majority of them is 1/1 vinyl. On the facade at first story level, the
easternmost window opening has been partially enclosed to allow for a smaller window sash to be inserted. Two windows in the
gable field at attic level have aluminum1/1 sash. The molded roof eaves make returns below a narrow rake board. On the north
elevation of the house is a frame, 1-story ell followed by an attached two-car garage. In the angle between the ell and the house
is a glassed-in vestibule, under a shed roof.

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE
Discuss the history of the building. Explain its associations with local (or state) history. Include uses of the building, and the role(s) the
owners/occupants played within the community.

The Quinabaug Mills were Fiskdale’s first industry and were started by Henry and Josiah Fiske in 1826. Henry Fiske lived in
Sturbridge and built the first mill and workers’ housing between 1826 and 1828. Their first mill began operation in 1829. This
was the Quinabaug Company that went on to build a dam and a stone mill in 1834 as the company grew. When Henry retired in
1835 the mills had not been completed, so Josiah Fiske finished the work by merging the Quinabaug Company with the
Sturbridge Cotton Mills with increased capital. The merged company known as the Sturbridge Cotton Mills had 200 looms and
10,000 spindles. Simeon A. Drake was the Quinabaug’s agent from 1832-35, and then he went on to become the agent for the
Sturbridge Cotton Company’s agent from 1836-1854. Being agent was a prominent position in a mill as official representative of
the owners in both internal and external company affairs. To that end, Drake was active in Sturbridge organizations and town
government as the two offices went hand-in-hand in many respects.

The Drakes were also farmers. In 1850 they were cultivating 30 acres on a small dairy farm worth $4,000. The Drakes had one
horse, two cows, and two pigs. They raised corn, potatoes and hay and made 100 Ibs. of butter. Simeon Drake’s activities in
town affairs spanned both his occupations. In 1843 he became the first chairman of the Second Agricultural Society of
Sturbridge. He was also a town selectman in 1847 and 1848 and town moderator in 1851 and 1861. By 1857 Drake also owned
a second house at the northwest corner of Main Street and Bates Hill Road, 528 Main Street. But typhoid fever hit Sturbridge in
1863 and Simeon died of it. Mary Drake continued to own both houses through 1870.

Simeon and Mary’s daughter Carrie sold the property in 1877 to Benjamin Lincoln, a Holyoke resident and leather belt
manufacturer. The Lincolns continued to live in Holyoke, so this was apparently an investment. Lincoln held on to the house
until 1882 likely renting it before selling it to farmers Elias and Caroline Gifford. The Giffords farmed until 1902. The property
changed hands quickly in 1902-1903 when William and Agnes Kirby bought it from the Giffords as an investment and turned
around and sold it to Caroline St. John. William Kirby was a Sturbridge druggist and Nelson St. John, a French Canadian
immigrant, and Caroline St. John were farmers, so the property was maintained as their home while they farmed land here and
perhaps elsewhere in Sturbridge as well. Typical for mill towns in the early 1900s, their teenaged children, Freddie and Carrie,
worked in the mills. Freddie worked as a folder and Carrie as a weaver at the Sturbridge Cotton Mill.
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By 1930 Joseph and Mary Jacques owned the house sharing it with Joseph’s father and brother and their 7 year old son Joseph,
Jr. By this date the property had divided off the farmland and the farmhouse had become home to Sturbridge industry workers.
Joseph Jacques worked in a steel mill; Mary worked as a stenographer in a finishing mill. Joseph’s brother Herman worked in a
finishing mill as a laborer and his father at 75 years of age in an auger works. Joseph Jacques died in 1966 and Mary remained
in the house until 1970, the longest resident since its construction.
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